1954

Rex Holland et al v. Columbia Iron Mining Company et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is an appeal from a summary judgment entered in favor of the corporate defendants and against the plaintiffs. The judgment was entered prior to answer of the amended complaint by any of the defendants.

The action was brought by Rex Holland individually and as administrator with the will annexed of the estate of his father, John Holland, against Arthur Moreton, a lawyer and members of his immediate family and against five corporations, hereinafter referred to as the corporate defendants. The lower court denied the motion to dismiss and motion for summary judgment filed by the Moretons, but granted the motion for summary judgment filed by the corporate defendants.

The case arises out of a transaction wherein Moreton, acting on behalf of himself and the other owners, sold to the corporate defendants a piece of mining property made up from what had been three mining claims. Rex and John Holland and one Murie had owned the claims and transferred to Moreton a one-fourth interest therein to act as attorney in obtaining patents thereon and as agent in negotiating the sale. He made the sale and the corporate defendants paid to him \$287,500.00 for his one-fourth interest and \$33,333.33 to each of the others for their respective one-fourth interests.

The basis of the liability of Moreton is his breach of confidential relationship with the Hollands and Murie

by fraudulent misrepresentation as to the value and price of the mining claims and his fraudulent concealment from the Hollands and Murie of the amount which he received for his interest in said claims.

The basis of liability of the corporate defendants is their conspiracy with Moreton and their participation in and aiding Moreton in the fraudulent concealment of the amount being paid and paid Moreton for his one-fourth interest.

The record upon which the summary judgment was granted consists of the Amended Complaint, the Motions of the corporate defendants, Answers to Interrogatories, Affidavits of Rex Holland and the Depositions of Rex Holland, Clara Holland, Arthur Moreton and Dr. Walter Mathesius and Merrill Heald who handled the transaction for the corporate defendants.

The facts upon which plaintiff basicaly rely for recovery against the defendants, both individual and corporate, are simple.

The two Hollands and Murie employed Moreton as their attorney to obtain patents on the three mining claims in return for which he was to receive a one-fourth interest in the claims (Rex Holland, dep., p. 11). Moreton also agreed to follow the sale of the property (Rex Holland dep., p. 26). Acting in behalf of the co-owners as attorney and trusted agent and at a time when the Agree-

ment of Ownership (Ex. 3, Rex Holland dep.) was the controlling document Moreton negotiated a sale with and to the corporate defendants whereby he sold the one-quarter interest of each the Hollands and Murie for \$33,333.33 and his own quarter interest for \$287,500.00. The basis of the purchase by the corporate defendants was that the property contained 1,550,000 tons of ore and the price was 25c per ton (Mathesius dep., p. 11, 12). In other words, the property was sold for \$387,500.00 and Moreton took \$287,500.00 and each of the co-owners received \$33,333.33.

The Hollands and Murie were never told the amount which Moreton received for his interest. The liability of the corporate defendants is based upon their participation in and aiding Moreton in concealing this vital information thereby enabling him to consummate his fraudulent breach of confidential relationship with the Hollands and Murie.

The specific acts whereby they accomplished this are set forth in detail in the amended complaint (R. 23-28) and on pages 32-46 of this Brief.

Although the interest owned by the four was an undivided interest, nevertheless the corporate defendants did not follow their usual policy of handling the trans-

action as a single transaction but handled it as two separate transactions making out separate and distinct documents for the offer, acceptance, sale and transfer of the three-fourths interest and for the one-fourth interest (Heald dep., p. 14-29), thereby enabling the sale to be completed without disclosure of the amount received by Moreton. They did this even though they knew by virtue of the letter of September 14, 1948 (Appendix A) that the co-owners desired their fair share.

There is a genuine issue of fact on the question of disclosure. Both Rex Holland and Clara Holland testified that Mathesius made no such disclosure and they did not know until long after the amount Moreton in fact received.

Thus by the co-operation of the corporate defendants acting through Mathesius and Heald, Moreton was enabled while acting as attorney and trusted agent to walk off with \$287,500.00 while his clients principals and equal owners received only \$33,333.33 apiece.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In 1946 or 1947, the Columbia Iron Mining Co., hereinafter referred to as "Columbia", one of the corporate defendants herein, was thinking about opening negotiations towards the purchase of a piece of property

containing a large deposit of iron ore. This property, located in Iron County, Utah, was known as the "Milner" property.

Three prospectors, John Holland, his son Rex Holland, and William C. Murie, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "co-owners", had jointly located three mining claims which happened to adjoin the Milner property. These claims were known as the "M & H" claims.

Columbia knew about the M & H claims and knew that the iron ore body in the Milner property extended into them (Mathesius' dep., p. 6, lines 2-4; p. 44, lines 1-4). Even though the M & H claims contained substantial deposits of iron ore, they were only of moderate value standing by themselves. However, because the M & H claims adjoined the Milner property and therefore could be mined by the same single facility used to mine the Milner property, they would be easy and cheap to mine along with the Milner property. Therefore, the M & H claims would be extremely valuable to Columbia in the event, but only in the event, that Columbia acquired the Milner property (Mathesius' dep., p. 7, lines 13-16; p. 44, lines 1-13).

All of this was unknown to the co-owners. They had no idea even as to the amount of tonnage contained in their property or its value per ton. It was impossible for them, or at least they knew of no way, to find out what their claims were worth (Moreton's dep., p. 72, lines 6-11; R. 90, 91). They believed their claims had a maximum worth of somewhere around \$5000.00 (Moreton's dep., p. 26, lines 28-30; p. 27, lines 1-25; p. 193, lines 1-5).

Either in 1946 or 1947,¹ Walter Mathesius became the president of several of the corporate defendants, including Columbia. Mathesius knew Arthur E. Moreton, a Utah lawyer. They both belonged to the Alta Club in Salt Lake City (Moreton's dep., p. 132, lines 10-23). Neither one of the men will state exactly how, when or where they first met or their first meeting took place (Mathesius' dep., p. 5, lines 9-23; p. 45, lines 16-22; p. 46, lines 10-18; p. 49, lines 15-18; Heald's dep., p. 10, lines 19-22). While they do not agree as to how, where or when it took place, it probably occurred either in 1946 or 1947,² but quite apparently BEFORE Moreton had any connection at all with the claims (Mathesius' dep., p. 50, lines 8-17).

¹ In one place Mathesius said it occurred in 1946 (Mathesius' dep., p. 4, lines 21-22) and in another he said it occurred in 1947 (Mathesius' dep., p. 32, lines 3-5).

² On page 78, lines 7, 21-27 and on page 89 of Moreton's deposition, lines 15-17, Moreton testified that his first contact with Mathesius on another deal (Sunbeam No. 8) was in July of 1947 and it was at that time that they talked about the M & H claims. On line 28 of the same page he decides that it was in January, 1947. On page 90, line 1, he says it may have been April of 1947. On line 4 of the same page, he says it was more likely in May of 1947. In another place he says he cannot tell what month or even what year it was (Moreton's dep., p. 133, lines 23-25).

At this meeting Mathesius advised Moreton of Columbia's tentative plan to acquire the Milner property and instructed the lawyer to contact the prospectors and get the prospectors to employ him as their attorney³ to patent the M & H claims and to authorize him to later act as their attorney and agent in selling the property to Columbia (Mathesius' dep., pp. 5, 6, 7; p. 8, lines 5-6; Defendants' Exhibit #5 of Rex Holland's deposition).

"I (Mathesius) said (to Moreton) that Moreton might suggest to the holders of these (M & H) claims, that they get them patented . . ." (Mathesius' dep., p. 8, lines 5-6).

". . . So I (Mathesius) told him (Moreton) I would suggest he (Moreton) tell the holders of these claims to proceed with the patenting, bringing their title to date, and after that I would be willing to talk business with him.

Q. And did he at that time state what his connection with these claims was?

A. No.

Q. Did he at any time state that he was representing the people who owned these claims?

A. No." (Mathesius' dep., p. 50, lines 8-17)

It is apparent that at the first and second times that Mathesius mentioned the M & H properties to Moreton, whether it was 1946 or 1947, Moreton obviously was not yet representing the co-owners and had no interest in the

³ Inferentially

properties. If at that time Moreton was already representing the co-owners, he would have told Mathesius so and that he had an interest in the property (Mathesius' dep., p. 49, lines 8-18). Moreton, apparently following out Mathesius' instructions, went to Cedar City, Utah⁴ (Rex Holland's dep., p. 8, lines 16-20; p. 9, lines 1-20), where the three prospectors were living, and sent for them to come to his hotel. These prospectors were extremely naive, of trusting dispositions and completely lacking in business experience (R. 2, 90).

⁴ This was in the spring of 1947, according to Rex Holland (Rex Holland's dep., p. 8, lines 16-20; p. 9, lines 1-20) or in the spring of 1946, according to Moreton. Moreton claims that his first meeting with the co-owners was on April 6, 1946, that he just happened to be in Cedar City and that he just happened to run into one of the co-owners and without knowing anything at all about the property, agreed to patent the property for a one-fourth interest and took an option on the remaining three-fourths interest for \$100,000.00 (Moreton's dep., p. 9, 10, 11; p. 26, lines 13-15). However, he could not produce and has not to this date produced an agreement or option dated April 6, 1946, his excuse being that he cannot find them (Moreton's dep., p. 1, 10, 11). He never again saw the alleged document of April 6, 1946 (Moreton's dep., p. 17, lines 6-7) and there is no written record to substantiate Moreton's claim that his first meeting took place in April, 1946 (Moreton's dep., p. 13, lines 9-12).

Rex Holland's original recollection of the first meeting with Moreton was that it took place in 1947. While it is true that Moreton obtained the signatures of the co-owners to a document dated September 1, 1946, it may well be that the document was not signed on the date stated. Additionally, its reference to the "lost" option (Moreton's dep., p. 9, 10, 11, 12), without stating any definite sum of money, renders it suspect.

As against that, there is a written record that the co-owners appointed Moreton their attorney to act in the patent proceedings on March 11, 1947 (Moreton's dep., p. 123, lines 13-15) and Moreton admits that his first work on the patent began on that date (Moreton's dep., p. 29, lines 14-16).

However, it is not necessary in order to hold the corporate defendants liable to prove that they instigated the conspiracy or for them to have been in the conspiracy with the Moretons from its inception (*Franck v. Moran*, 36 Cal. App. 32, 171 P. 841, 1918).

One of the prospectors, Rex Holland, was partially blind (Moreton's dep., p. 220, lines 1-3). John Holland and William C. Murie were both elderly men and quite ill (Moreton's dep., p. 247, lines 9-13; Mathesius' dep., p. 9, lines 7-9). The lawyer concealed the fact that Columbia had sent him or had told him to suggest to them that they employ him to patent their claims and the fact that the property contained a large deposit of ore, that Columbia might buy the adjoining (Milner) property, in which event it would want their property and that the ore was or would then be worth at least 25 cents per ton, and so very easily got them to employ him as their attorney (Rex Holland's dep., p. 110; p. 111, line 20 through p. 112, line 5; p. 113, line 3) and to agree in writing that he, Moreton, should receive a one-fourth interest in the property for getting the claims patented (Rex Holland's dep., p. 10, lines 25-30; p. 11, lines 1-30; p. 113, line 17 through p. 114, line 1).

At that first meeting,⁵ the co-owners placed their confidence and trust in Moreton. They agreed, at Moreton's instruction, to discuss the property with no one else. (Rex Holland's dep., p. 111, line 20 through p. 112, line 5; p. 112, lines 14-18; p. 112, line 22 through p. 113, line 3; p. 113, line 17 through p. 114, line 1). Mathesius and Moreton then had another meeting.

⁵ According to Rex Holland, nothing at all was said about any option at the first meeting (Rex Holland's dep., p. 17, lines 19-26).

Neither Mathesius nor Moreton will fix the time or place with much certainty, but the meeting seems to have also occurred in 1947, although possibly in 1948. At this meeting, Mathesius advised Moreton that Columbia had in fact acquired the Milner property and that he, Moreton, should complete the patenting of the property as Columbia was ready to buy it (Mathesius' dep., p. 7, lines 20-25; p. 8, lines 1-9).

Moreton, over a period of one and one-half or two years and sometimes at the direction of or with the assistance of the corporate defendants, prepared a great number of different kinds of additional documents pertaining to the property, including offers to sell, deeds, contracts, letters, agreements, options (one undated [Defendants' Exhibit 2, Rex Holland's deposition]); another allegedly lost (Moreton could not produce the original document which purportedly gave him a one-fourth interest and option to buy for \$100,000.00 Moreton's dep., p. 11, lines 11-12); third option which did not recite any purchase price, etc. The lawyer obtained the signatures of the prospectors to all of them. The prospectors were never left with copy of what they had signed (Rex Holland's dep., p. 29, lines 25-26; p. 36, lines 20-27; p. 37, lines 14-15). Moreton never paid them for any of the purported options (Moreton's dep., p. 20, lines 13-14; p. 24, lines 12-20).

One of the documents was a so-called "Agreement of Ownership", dated July 20, 1947, which was to replace and supplant one of the purported options (Rex Holland's dep., p. 73, lines 13-26; Defendants' Exhibit 3, Rex Holland's deposition). The lawyer had told the prospectors that their property contained 1,333,000 tons of ore or maybe a LITTLE more and that they couldn't expect more than 10 cents per ton because of the depth of the ore body (Overburden) (Rex Holland's dep., p. 121, lines 5-9; p. 122, lines 3-8) and that he would try to sell the property on that basis (Rex Holland's dep., p. 21, lines 1-4; p. 23, lines 6-12; p. 28, lines 1-7; p. 121, lines 5-19; p. 124, line 23 through p. 125, line 8; p. 125, line 30 through p. 126, line 18; p. 126, lines 22-25; p. 126, line 30; p. 127, lines 1-2; line 23 through p. 128, line 2).

It is obvious from a reading of the cleverly contrived language of the so-called "Agreement of Ownership" that Moreton had told them that the ore in the body was worth only ten cents per ton and that therefore the prop-

⁶ It is impossible to figure out even from Moreton's own records or his testimony just what interest, or the basis thereof, if any, he had in the M & H property or what documents he was relying upon. For example, Moreton admitted that up until the time he received a deed dated August 23, 1947, he had no interest in the property. Admittedly he has neither paid for nor ever exercised any of the options (Moreton's dep., p. 210, lines 1-26). Admittedly, he did not thereafter acquire any interest in the property nor did he ever exercise any of the purported options. Again, on the 25th day of August, 1947, he prepared the Application for Patent, which was filed with the U. S. government, for the signatures of the co-owners, which application recited that they, the co-owners, each still owned a one-third interest in the property (Moreton's dep., p. 210, lines 1-6). This document was prepared by Moreton after the purported "Agreement of Ownership." If the co-owners each owned one-third of the property at that time, Moreton never had any interest at all in the property.

erty would bring close to \$133,000.00. Otherwise he would not have recited that figure of \$133,000.00 at all.

Because of these concealments and false representations the co-owners assumed that the buyer would not pay much more than \$133,000.00, that Moreton, therefore, would not receive much more than one-fourth of the total amount paid by the buyer and thus were persuaded to agree that Moreton should so receive all over the \$100,000.00 and *to that extent* consented to his receiving all over \$100,000.00 for his one-fourth interest in the property.⁷

At a later date Moreton told the co-owners their property contained between 1,400,000 and 1,550,000 tons. While there is evidence in the record that the figure of 1,550,000 tons is correct, there is also evidence in the record that varying estimates up to approximately 6,000,000 tons are correct (Plaintiffs' amended complaint, R. 8, 14, 16, 17, 22); Rex Holland's deposition, Defendants answer to Interrogatories, R. 48). If these latter estimates of the tonnage contained in the M & H claims are correct, Moreton concealed the true tonnage of ore contained in the property.

Moreton concealed the fact that Columbia might purchase the Milner property and that if they did, the ore in

⁷ No reason whatsoever has been advanced by Moreton or anyone else why the agreement provided that Moreton was to get all over \$133,000.00, in addition to his one-fourth of that amount (Moreton's dep., p. 218, lines 26, 29-30; p. 219, lines 1-2).

the M & H properties would be and was worth 25 cents or more per ton. Moreton also concealed the fact that Columbia acquired the Milner property. He represented that the ore in the M & H properties was worth only 10 cents per ton (Rex Holland's dep., p. 121, lines 5-19). Moreton represented that he was going to get the same amount or perhaps a LITTLE more for his one-fourth as each of the co-owners was getting for each of their one-fourth (Rex Holland's dep., p. 125, line 30, through p. 126, line 18; p. 127, line 23 through p. 128, line 2). Moreton concealed the amount of money that he was getting for his one-fourth.

In September or October, 1948, Columbia prepared a *single* contract of sale between the co-owners and Moreton as the sellers and Columbia as the buyer. This contract (admittedly later destroyed by Columbia — Heald's dep., p. 17, lines 16-22—) covered the *entire* M & H property and recited the *total* price Columbia was paying for it (Heald's dep., p. 14, lines 17-18). Columbia forwarded the contract to Moreton, apparently hoping that the co-owners would sign the contract without reading it, as they had signed other documents submitted to them by Moreton.

About September 12, 1948, before (according to both Moreton and Mathesius) either Moreton or Columbia had ascertained the tonnage contained in the M & H property and before they had discussed any price per ton and before any contract was submitted to the prospectors for

their signatures, one of the prospectors, Rex Holland, heard from a Parley Canfield that the M & H property contained an estimated 3,500,000 tons of ore "and that it was being *offered* for sale for 25 cents per ton" (Rex Holland's letter of September 14, 1948; Rex Holland's dep., Defendants' Exhibit #5, page 2, lines 11-12). (This estimate was high by 2,000,000 tons according to the testimony of Mathesius—Mathesius' dep., p. 12, lines 4-5; p. 71, lines 11-12 p. 145, lines 9-16). Rex thereupon (September 14, 1948) wrote a letter to Mathesius (Defendants' Exhibit #5, Rex Holland's dep., Appendix A of this brief) for the purpose of finding out how much the steel company was paying for ore at that time (Rex Holland's dep., p. 52, lines 16-19), since the co-owners knew of no sales or prices paid and had no other way to determine the value of the property (bottom line, page 1, lines 1-7, page 2 of second affidavit of Rex Holland, R. 90, 91; Moreton's dep., p. 72, lines 6-11; plaintiffs' amended complaint, R. 14, 15) or of getting an equal division of the money (Rex Holland's dep., p. 76, lines 28-29; p. 77, lines 10-11). The letter advised Mathesius that he, Rex, had heard that the property contained 3,500,000 tons of ore and that it was being offered at 25 cents per ton. The letter requested a one-fourth, three-fourths division of the money and notified the president that the Agreement of Ownership with the lawyer was based upon the supposition that the lawyer was to get one-fourth of the money Columbia was paying for the entire

property. The letter also suggested that the deal should be postponed until such time as it was understood that Moreton was to receive one-fourth and the co-owners three-fourths.

The other two co-owners did not know the contents of this letter to Mathesius (Rex Holland's dep., p. 78, lines 17-18; Moreton's dep., p. 168, lines 11-17, 25-27).

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