1954

Rex Holland et al v. Columbia Iron Mining Company et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

I. Point.

Neither Columbia Iron Mining Company nor any other of the corporate defendants conspired with any one to defraud appellants.

A deposition has been taken of every person who had anything at all to do with the negotiation for or acquisition of the M&H claims; no one remains who possesses any probative information relating to this subject. These depositions were exhaustive, those upon oral interrogatories covering approximately 700 pages of transcript. The plaintiffs' answers of January 13, 1954, to the written interrogatories propounded by the corporate defendants, seeking to identify the persons having knowledge of the facts alleged in the several causes of action in the complaint and the names of the persons the plaintiffs intended calling to testify to those facts, named the persons whose depositions had been taken. The only additions were Mr. Sargis, whom the plaintiffs proposed to call on the question of value of the M&H claims, and Clara S. Holland as to the alleged conspiracy to defraud the owners of the $\frac{3}{4}$ ths interest. On the facts here disclosed, testimony as to the value of the M&H claims, whatever it might be, would be immaterial, and the deposition of Clara S. Holland was taken on written interrogatories and bears no relation whatever to a conspiracy. On this record, which is complete, there is not a scintilla of evidence of any conspiracy between the corporate and individual defendants to defraud the plaintiffs or for any other purpose or of any other character whatsoever.

Appellants charge that these respondents *instigated* an alleged conspiracy and scheme to defraud them by concealing from these co-owners that out of the total

purchase price of \$387,500.00, Moreton was to receive \$287,500.00 as against the co-owners' \$100,000.00. There is no evidence whatever that a conspiracy to defraud existed at all, much less that the respondents, or any of them, instigated such. The record here establishes, without contradiction, not only that Columbia Iron Mining Company was a party to no such concealment or to any conspiracy to that end, but that this plaintiff and his co-owners not only knew what Moreton was receiving but that to satisfy the condition Columbia Iron Mining Company had imposed upon its purchase of the M&H claims and to insure consummation of the sale, these co-owners by their letter of October 16, 1948, disclaimed any interest whatever in what Moreton was receiving, expressed their complete satisfaction with the \$100,000.00 to be paid them and by their letter of November 20, 1948, reiterated their complete lack of interest in what Moreton might receive and expressed their hope for an early acceptance of their offer. Columbia Iron Mining Company accordingly bought the M&H claims and paid the purchase price so directed by these co-owners.

It would be difficult indeed to imagine a more conclusive estoppel than that resulting against these plaintiffs. However, some four years later they charge they had first learned of the sum paid Moreton for his quarter interest and they proceed to charge Columbia Iron Mining Company and the other corporate defendants with having conspired with Moreton to defraud them.

While there is no testimony whatever to support this charge of conspiracy or fraud, the very premise upon which it is made is obviously false. It is the testimony of Moreton, Mathesius and Heald that upon the occasion of the closing and before delivery of the deeds, Mathesius read aloud to all present, including these co-owners, the following letter by Mathesius to Moreton, dated December 20, 1948:

Pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 4 of the December 20, 1948 Agreement between Columbia Iron Mining Company and Arthur E. Moreton, Ethel T. Moreton, John R. Moreton and Susan Moreton Tevis for the purchase of an undivided one-fourth interest in and to the M&H, M&H No. 1 and M&H No. 2 Lode Mining Claims situate in the Iron Springs Mining District, Iron County, Utah, Columbia Iron Mining Company hereby acknowledges receipt of the Utah statutory form of Warranty Deed conveying said undivided one-fourth interest to the Company. Said deed is approved by the Company's counsel.

There is transmitted herewith the Company's Voucher Treas. No. 01931 drawn on Wells Fargo Bank & Union Trust Co., San Francisco, California, to Arthur E. Moreton, Ethel T. Moreton, John R. Moreton and Susan Moreton Tevis in the amount of Seventy-One Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars (\$71,875) as initial payment upon the purchase price of Two Hundred Eighty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$287,500) for said undivided one-fourth interest. Will you kindly have the enclosed receipt executed before two witnesses and thereafter return the same for our files. (Item 10, Correspondence side, Exhibit A, Heald deposition.)

The plaintiff testified that Moreton read the prepared documents aloud to those attending the closing but could not remember Mathesius reading anything. (Rex Holland deposition, p. 34.) In her deposition, Clara S. Holland, mother of Rex Holland and widow of John G. Holland, denied recollection of the reading of anything. She was 71 years of age and in such poor health as to forbid taking her deposition upon oral examination. She and the plaintiff live together in Cedar City, Utah. Indeed she remembered little other than the \$100,000.00 they had received.

Upon the occasion of the closing and in the presence of all, Internal Revenue stamps, procured by Moreton, were placed on the warranty deeds; that for the Moretons' one-fourth interest, stamps in the amount of \$316.25; that conveying the co-owners' three-fourths interest, stamps in the amount of \$110.00. (Heald deposition, pp. 51, 53, 57, 59.) Both these deeds, with the revenue stamps affixed, were recorded in the office of the County Recorder of Iron County, Utah, January 5, 1949.

The following is an example of the examination to which the defendant Moreton was subjected on this question: (*Moreton Dep p 154-5*)

Q. Now, this was the last day of the deal, and the day upon which the sellers got their money, is that correct?

A. That is right.

Q. Now, prior to that date, did you tell them how much money you were getting?

A. I told them that I was getting twenty-five cents per ton. That was definitely understood at all times.

Q. Did you tell them?

A. Repeatedly told them that.

Q. Did you tell them in dollars how much money you were getting for your one-fourth interest?

A. Well, in the offer of October 16th made by them, or rather the letter accompanying, the tonnage was clearly stated as 1.55 million tons, a simple matter of arithmetic to figure it out.

Q. May I ask you again though, whether or not you told them in dollars how much money you were getting for your one-fourth interest?

A. Well, I assumed they understood. We discussed twenty-five cents and the tonnage was fixed in the letter.

Q. Now, aside from the fact that you assumed that they understood, did you ever tell them how much money, in dollars, you were getting for your one-fourth interest?

A. They were told that on December 20th, by Dr. Mathesius.

Q. Now, aside from the time that Dr. Mathesius told them on December 20, 1948, did you ever tell them?

A. Other than that we were getting twenty-five cents; that I was getting twenty-cents per ton on 1.55 million tons. *-five*

Q. Did you ever tell them in dollars how much money you were getting?

A. I have already answered that I don't think I did, but it was a simple matter of arithmetic, and I may have even told them the price, but I am not altogether sure of that, but any school boy could figure that out. * * * He well knew, they all knew. They all knew the going price. It was a matter of common knowledge in Cedar City that the price being paid was twenty-five cents per ton. Etc., etc.

Moreover, Rex Holland's letter to Mathesius of September 14, 1948 (Appendix, Ex. A), reads in part as follows:

Ever since the property has been diamond drilled Mr. Moreton has made us believe that there was only One Million, Four Hundred Thousand (1,400,000) tons of iron ore contained in this deposit.

We agreed to accept \$100,000.00 for this property based upon that tonnage and have signed Articles of Agreement that will expire at the end of September, 1948. Since we signed the Agreement we have been advised that instead of One Million Four Hundred Thousand tons of iron upon the property there are Three Million Five

Hundred Thousand Tons of iron ore and that it is being offered for sale for 25c per ton or a total sales price of \$875,000.00.

Therefore Mr. Moreton has, through misleading us about the total tonnage, had us sign an agreement that will net him \$775,000.00 for a \$700.00 investment.

and the letter of the plaintiff and his co-owners to Mathesius accompanying their offer to sell, both dated October 16, 1948, contains the following (Appendix, Ex. D):

We understand that proposed purchase of our interest in the three M & H Claims at Desert Mound, Iron County, Utah, known as the M & H, M & H No. 1 and M & H No. 2 Lode Mining Claims is awaiting your determination of estimated tonnage (which we understand you estimate at 1.55 million tons) and issuance of a patent to us by the United States Government.

It is perfectly apparent that the plaintiff before the closing of the transaction well knew the purchase price of 25c per ton, that the estimated tonnage of ore in the M&H claims was 1,550,000 tons and that multiplication of the two would give the total purchase price of \$387,500.00; of that total purchase price the plaintiff and his co-owners were to receive \$100,000.00, leaving \$287,500.00 for Moreton. The plaintiff made his calculations readily enough and he must be charged with a calculation as simple as this. What provoked his letter of September 14, 1948, was the misinformation he had accepted that the tonnage instead of 1,400,000 was 3,500,000 tons — he

knew the value per ton and he and his associates were agreeable to the deal on the assumption of a tonnage of 1,400,000, well knowing on that assumption that Moreton would receive \$250,000.00 to their \$100,000.00. And they were satisfied with that. The plaintiff's letter of September 14, 1948, was a confirmation of the agreement between these parties as to the disposition of the total consideration to be paid. The transaction was closed on an estimated basis of ore tonnage of 1,550,000 tons at 25c per ton, to which the plaintiff and his co-owners agreed, Moreton to receive \$287,500.00 and the plaintiff and his associates \$100,000.00. Upon the conclusion of the transaction on the basis stated, they expressed themselves as well satisfied.

As a general rule, where a person with actual or constructive knowledge of the facts induces another by his words or conduct to believe that he acquiesces in or ratifies a transaction, or that he will offer no opposition thereto, and that other, in reliance on such belief, alters his position, such person is estopped from repudiating the transaction to the other's prejudice. This rule obtains regardless of the particular intent of the party whose acquiescence induced action.

31 C.J.S. Estoppel. §114.

The doctrine of estoppel in pais is founded upon principles of morality and fair dealing and is intended to subserve the ends of justice. It always presupposes error on one side and fault or fraud upon the other and some defect of which it would be inequitable for the party against whom the doctrine is asserted to take advantage. * * * Estoppel of this character arises from the conduct

of a party using the word "conduct" in its broadest meaning as including his spoken words, his positive acts, and his silence when there is a duty to speak * * * it holds a person to a representation made or a position assumed where otherwise inequitable consequences would result to another who, having the right to do so, under all the circumstances of the case, has in good faith relied thereon and been misled to his injury.

19 Am. Jur. Estoppel. §42.

The only way these co-owners could avoid the estoppel was to bring Mathesius into the alleged conspiracy with Moreton to defraud them; that they have failed utterly to do.

But the best defense to appellants' charge is the fact as disclosed by the record. The facts here apparent have been grossly distorted and misrepresented by appellants, which will be quite obvious to this court—even counsel's references to the record belie their statements.

The fact of the matter is that these co-owners were interested only in getting their \$100,000.00. They were not interested in what Moreton was receiving. That is precisely what they wrote Mathesius by their letters of October 16th and November 20th, 1948, and their declarations as therein contained were both unambiguous and emphatic.

These co-owners knew what Moreton was receiving. Had not Moreton told them, all they had to do to find out was to multiply 1,550,000 tons by 25c, the price per ton. Had they entertained any doubt, or had they been ignorant and interested, they could have asked Moreton how much he was getting. Had they been interested, it is inconceivable that they would not have asked him. There is not here even a suspicion that they had asked such a question of either Moreton or any one else, and had they asked Moreton that question, no one could on the face of this record have concluded Moreton would have concealed the fact or have answered the question falsely.

Rex Holland, by his letter of September 14, 1948, proceeded to acquaint Mathesius with what he thought Moreton had done, to confirm the co-owners agreement with Moreton, and to ask Mathesius' assistance in nullifying that agreement by withholding Columbia Iron Mining Company's acceptance until the contract had expired.

Counsel cite a multitude of authorities, none of which is objectionable on its facts. We do not propose to burden this court with a discussion of any of those authorities because none of them are pertinent to the fact as disclosed by the record here.

II.

Point.

Appellants' action is barred by Section 78-12-26 U.C.A. 1953.

The deed from Moreton bearing the proper amount of revenue stamps, \$316.25, was duly recorded January 5, 1949, in the office of the County Recorder, Iron County, Utah, in Book 3—Mining, pages 485-7. (Heald deposition, Exhibit A, Item 6.)

That revenue stamps reflect the consideration is a matter of law which appellants are bound to know. And the discrepancy between the amount of stamps on the Holland deed, \$110.00—and that on the Moreton deed, \$316.25, clearly indicates a similar discrepancy in consideration paid even though the actual amount of consideration is not shown except by reference to the statute.

The recordation of the deed with the stamps affixed is notice of the fact that Moreton received consideration commensurate with the amount of the stamps affixed to his deed. The statute of limitations began to run January 5, 1949, and this action, commenced December 19, 1952, is barred by Section 78-12-26, U.C.A. 1953.

The case is squarely within the rule stated in *Simon v. Clark*, 151 Kan. 431, 99 P. 2d 739, an action to set aside a deed because a fraud on creditors, wherein the court held:

The statute also provides the cause of action shall not be deemed to have accrued until the discovery of the fraud. The recording of the deed was constructive notice of the alleged fraud and sufficient to start the running of the statute on that particular cause of action.

In *Collins v. Richardson*, 168 Kan. 203, 212 P. 2d 302, it appeared that the parties had orally agreed upon the terms of a proposed trust and, upon representations that the written trust set forth the terms agreed upon, appellant signed the written document. In an action to quiet title based upon the written trust, appellant

* * * sought to have the written trust agreement reformed. * * * Considered as a cause of action for relief on the ground of fraud, was it barred? The stricken allegations, read in connection with the written trust agreement, disclosed that the trust agreement was made a matter of record in the office of the register of deeds in Ellis County in December, 1931. * * * That was an open, public disclosure of the contents of the agreement, and if it be assumed there was fraud, under the reasoning of *Malone v. Young*, 148 Kan. 250, 264, 81 P. 2d 23, and the cases cited therein, the claim now made was barred long before the instant action was commenced. * * *

In *Davis v. Rogers et ux*, 128 Wash. 231, 222 P. 499:

* * * The fraud relied on by respondent is that Rogers represented that he could dispose of the property for \$4,000 and was to receive a five per cent commission of \$200 for making the sale; * * * that Rogers had no other relation to the

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